
 

 

 

ANNEX  “A” 
Responses to Clarification Requests (Batch 7)  

General Bid Bulletin No. 17 
 

MALOLOS-CLARK RAILWAY PROJECT (BLUMENTRITT EXTENSION) AND SOUTH  
COMMUTER RAILWAY PROJECT for PACKAGES CP S-01 AND CPS-02; CONSTRUCTION OF 

CIVIL STRUCTURES: VIADUCTS, BRIDGES AND FOUR STATIONS 



No. Packages Volume Section Page No. Clause No./Title
Reference Text 
(if necessary) 

Clarification
Request

Final Response

1 ALL Volume 1A Part I Section 4A BOQ
GS133(1)
GS133(2)
GS133(3)

Trees to be root balled, packaged ready for transport elsewhere to be replanted
Trees within PNR Property to to cut down, roots grubbed up for disposal off site

Trees within 3rd party property to to cut down, roots grubbed up for disposal off site

With reference to Pay Item Nos GS133(1) GS133(2) GS133(3), Lump Sum amount is requested for tree removal / relocation.
Can you please provide schedule and location of the trees to be cut down or reloacated?

Can you please the relocation points for the trees to be relocated?
Bidder is advised that the Tree survey information will be provided in Addendum 3

2 S-01 SCRP_Volume 2 Part 2
Section IC TS 700 Electrical 

20200918
121  Uniterruptable Power Supply (UPS) The UPS shall be fitted with a manually operated make before break mechanical by-pass system. Please confirm if the statement implies an external mechanical by-pass system, since ups has an internal by-pass system.

The UPS shall be fitted with an external manually operated make before break 
mechanical by-pass system."

3 S-01 Volume 2 
CP S-

01_04_BLU_ME_PL_SN_FS 
NSRP-DWG-BLU-FS-6621 N/A N/A

Please provide Pipe(fire water supply) size for jockey pump.

The pipe (fire water supply) size for jockey pump is 50mm diameter.  NSRP-DWG-BLU-
FS-6621 will be revised and issued in Addendum 4

4 S-01 Volume 2 

Section 6 Part II Drawings
MCRP (Blumentritt Extension) 

Package CP S-0: Blumentritt 
Station Structural Drawings

NSRP-DWG-BLU-ST-4241 Roof Framing Typical Details N/A

May we request for the specification of valley cable.

Please refer to TS523.2.2 for the Contractor's responsibility on the engineering and 
design scope for the roof membrane system.

5 S-02
Volume 2-2.1 Book1 

(Civil)-CPS-04_VIA00
NSCR-DWG-VIA00-ST-0321 Pile details

It is stated in the drawing that all cogs turned out ward from the pile core.

Is it possible to do a splicing with in the pile cap zone? See sketch 
below

It is possible to turn the cogs inward towards the pile, but with the approval of the 
engineer.

6 S-02
Volume 2 and BOQ Bill 3, 

Item 204(2)g
Bored Pile (900mmØ), (in dry conditions) Missing drawing/not found in pile layout, please clarify and provide drawings.

The 900 diameter piles is for the abutment of the plank girder bridges.  Please see 
NSRP-DWG-PLK-ST-0601. These are included in Road drawing set.

7 S-02
Volume 3- Attachment 1 
Summary of Key Dates

PCC8

KD 02-1 Complete a minimum and continuous 
length of 3,000

metres on the viaduct where it passes through at 
least

one of the three stations

KD 02-2 Complete a minimum and continuous 
length of 7,000

metres within any viaduct section

KD 02-3 Completion of the remaining viaduct 
sections

(approximately 0.9 km)

KD 02-1 Complete a minimum and continuous length of 3,000
metres on the viaduct where it passes through at least

one of the three stations

KD 02-2 Complete a minimum and continuous length of 7,000
metres within any viaduct section

KD 02-3 Completion of the remaining viaduct sections
(approximately 0.9 km)

The meaning of minimum and continuous is follows;- 1. The meaning of minimum 
continuous is minimum of 500m continuous length. The length of 3000m and 7000m is 

cumulated length.  Revised wording on Key Dates will be issued in Addendum 3.

8 S-02
Volume 3- Attachment 1 
Summary of Key Dates

PCC8

The Protective Concrete Top will be casted after the installation of the Track Slab.

Since the Track Slab is not part of our scope, however, the key date KD-08 need to completion of whole works which should include the said 
protective concrete, please provide track slab construction schedule, so that we could include the protective concrete into our program.

it is the Engineer's recommendation to complete the protective concrete top prior to 
hand over to System Contractor. This is pratically possible to complete  and can be 

aviod a lot of interface cordination.

9 S-02 Volume 1 Section 2, Bid Data Sheet - BDS 1 BDS 2
Contents of Bidding Documents 

ITB 6.4  & 6.5

6. Sections of Bidding Document 
6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Document. Failure to furnish all 

information or documentation required by the Bidding Document may result in the rejection of the bid

6.5 The following documents constitute “Site Data”. The Site Data may be downloaded from https://bit.ly/34zn958, the PS-DBM, DOTr and 
PNR websites listed in ITB 7.1 

In reference to the list of documents constituted in the Site Data Folder, as per BDS 6.5, that may be downloaded from 
https://bit.ly/34zn958,  we would like to kindly request the documents and information of the following folders, as these are not included in 

the link provided. 
• Resettlement Action Plan Report for Package 02

• Marikina Fault Line Seismic Report
• Schedule of Demolitions Due to RAP (package specific)

• SCRP Tree Survey – Report
• Tree Cutting/Relocation from PNR/Private Land

• DPWH Structures Interfaces
• Available Land – Mapping (package specific)

- Resettlement Action Plan Report for Package 02  - currently no information is 
availble

- Marikina Fault Line Seismic Report - currently no information is availble
- 10.09 Schedule of Demolitions due to RAP - currently no information is availble. thie 

work will be paid from provisional sum.
- 10.11 Tree Survey Report - the information will be available in future addendum 3 

- 10.12 Tree cutting relocation from PNR Prival Land - the information will be 
available in Addendum 3

- 10.15 DPWH Structures Interfaces - currently no additinal information is available. 
the work to elevated roads in CP S-02 included as provisional sums. 

- 10.22 Available land - Bidder is advised that further information regarding land 
access will be issued in Addendum 3.

10 S-01 Volume 2

Section 6
I Specifications

C Technical Specifications & II 
Drawings

Please clarify the following:         
2.1 Which will govern between architectural and electrical plans if there are any discrepancies for the electrical works.

2.2 If there is an allotted area for temporary facilities.
2.3 What type of air terminal will be used, conventional or early streamer emission. (ref. Dwg. No.NSRP-DWG-BLU-EL-5003)

2.4 if CARI and electrical permits are excluded in our scope of works.

2.1 Electrical plans are in sync with the approved architectural plans since its using 
XREF. Contractor to further vaildate.

2.2 Contractor to vaildate.                                                                                              
2.3 Conventional                                                                            

2.4 Included in the scope of work.                               

11 S-01 Volume 2

Section 6
I Specifications

C Technical Specifications & II 
Drawings

 Kindly confirm if the supply and installation of the following are part of our scope of works: 
3.1 Generator set including feeder

3.2 150kVAR capacitor bank
3.3 Panelboards, ECB’s, UPS and ATS
3.4 Lighting fixture and wiring devices

3.5 Lighting steel poles
3.6 Wiring-ins

3.7 Roughing-ins including cable trays
3.8 Control panel for fire pump, and jockey pump.

3.9 Timer switch
3.10Temperature sensors

Mentioned below are confirmed installation scope of work as indicated in the bid 
document.  Please raise specific queries if any unclear scope.

3.1 Yes, included.
3.2 Excluded.

3.3 to 3.7 Yes, included.
3.8 by fire pump vendor.

3.9 Yes, included.
3.10 Supply is from vendor but installation is included in scope of work.

12 S-01 Volume 2

Section 6
I Specifications

C Technical Specifications & II 
Drawings

Kindly confirm if the supply and installation of the following are excluded in our scope of works:
4.1 LVSG including feeder and termination works

4.2 Transformer including feeder
4.3 450kVAR capacitor bank including feeder

4.4 Electrical works from the load side of MDB5, MDB6, and ECB-s to mechanical equipment.
4.5 All electrical related civil works such as duct banks, Cable pit and foundation for

roadway lighting steel poles.
4.6 Structural hangers and supports for cable trays and lighting fixture at platform level.

4.7 Power provision for ticket vending machines and turnstiles (roughing-ins, Wiring-ins, and outlet)
4.8 Architectural signages including all accessories.

4.9 Power conditioner (PCS) including its roughing-ins and wiring-ins from MDB2 to PCS and PCS to ATS.
4.10 Booster pump control panel including feeder

Mentioned below are confirmed installation scope of work as indicated in the bid 
document.  Please raise specific queries if any unclear scope.

4.1 Feeder up to the Main distribution panel is part of scope of work. 
 4.2 Yes, excluded. 
 4.3 Yes, excluded. 

 4.4 Included in the scope of work. 
 4.5. by civil works but coordination at site should be done. 

 4.6 included in the scope of work. 
 4.7 included in the scope of work 

 4.8 architectural signages are excluded but wiring of power supply is included in 
scope of work. 

 4.9 Yes, excluded. 
 4.10 booster pump control panel is by vendor. Feeder is part of scope of work.

13 S-01 Volume 2
02_CP S-01_VIA00

107
NSRP-DWG-VIA00-ST-1901 Please could you advise the tenderer which item should be used to indicate the cost for Earthing and Lightning Arrester which is shown in 

the mentioned drawing?

Earthing and Lightning Protection System is not part of the bidder/contractor's SOW.
 

Earthing and Lightning Protection System at Viaducts is By Others (i.e. E&M 
Contractor)

For contractor scope, please see NSRP-DWG-VIS00-ST-1901.

14 S-01
Volume 2 &  

Part II Section 6 – II: Drawings
02_CP S01_ VIA00

Page 101/108 NSRP-DWG-VIA00-ST-1401
Regarding the seismic restrainer, please kindly report the type and technical specification of the rubber strip; in particular, we would like to 

know whether the rubber is used for protection purposes or it should have mechanical characteristics.

Material properties of the rubber strip was added to the drawing in Addendum 3
 Durometer Hardness - 60

 Shear Modulus (MPa) G - 0.9
 Bulk Modulus (MPa) B - 2000  

15 S-01
Volume 2 

Section 6
I Specifications

B General Specifications

Professional Indemnity (PI) Insurance

Where the Contract requires the Contractor to carry out any elements of Permanent Works Design, he shall ensure that he, or his consultant 
designer, is appropriately covered by sufficient Professional Indemnity insurance.

At the Contractor’s discretion, major aspects of Temporary Works Design may also necessitate PI Insurance cover.

Please kindly confirm that Permanent Works Design by the contractor is not required under this contract. 
All permanent works are designed by the Empolyer unless otherwise specified in the 

bid document.

16 S-01 Volume 2

Section 6, Annex A - TS 200
Part II – Requirements
Section 6 - Employer’s 

Requirements
IA - Scope of Works

SOW -13
2.4.4 Standardisation of Electrical and Mechanical 

Equipment
It is a requirement of the Employer that to the greatest extent possible, certain of the Electrical and Mechanical elements of the SCRP should be 

standardised across the entire Project.

We understand that standardization of equipment should only be provided in packages covered by the contractor's contract. For example, if 
there is only S05 package within the scope of the contractor, the contractor will only provide standardization of the equipment to be 

procured and assembled within S05's scope. Please confirm that it is not required to provide the equipment from the same vendors/suppliers 
in other packages under the scope of other contractors. Otherwise, we kindly ask the Client to publish a brand list for each relevant system at 

this stage in order to provide an overall standardization in the entire line.

The Bidder is only required to submit the information as listed in 2.4.4. for the 
particular contract.

17 ALL
Volume 2 

1)  Section 6 - IB General 
Specification, GS 133 

ENVIROMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT,

2) EISR, Chapter 4 Environmental 
management Plan, Table 4-1 

Environment Management Plan for 
the Project,

2)Page 4-15. 1) Clause 133.1.

Tree Contractor

ESIR Environmental Management Plan indicates that the tree removal permit, inventory of affected trees (number specie, endemicity, 
conservation status of affected trees), replanting activities, cutting permit, re-planting activities, etc will be conducted by Tree Contractors,

Whereas;

GS 133.1 sates that the tree cutting and re-location process including DENR permits is under the scope of the Contractor.

Please clarify the differences of the scopes between the Contractor and Tree Contractor to prevent any conflicts. 

Please also clarify if such a Tree Contractor will be contracted by the Client or the Contractor.

1) Inventory of affected trees to be done by Tree Inventory Contractor contracted by the 
Client 

 2) Tree Cutting and Earthballing (TCEB) Permit will be secured by the Civil works 
Contractor 

 3) Actual tree-cutting/ Earthballing and tree replanting/replacement shall be the 
responsibility of the Civil works Contractor or by Subcontractor contracted by the 

Civil works Contractor

CP S01-02 Responses to Bid Requests (Batch 7)

Ambient Water Baseline and Quality Monitoring 

Section 118.8.4 of GS (Addendum) explains Water Quality Monitoring requirements at listed water bodies. Monitoring is required for the 
below listed parameters in following way:

• Prior to the commencement of any construction activities
• Fixed quarterly intervals thereafter in March, June, September and December

• Weekly when the construction work is within 30 m of the bank of watercourse. 

1. Color 
2. Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 

3. Temperature 
4. pH (Range) 

5. Dissolved Oxygen (DO) 
6. Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) 

7. Fecal Coliforms 
8. Total Coliforms 

9. Conductivity 
10. Chloride as Cl 11. Nitrate as Nitrogen 

12. Phosphate as Phosphorus 
13. Copper (Dissolved Copper) 

14. Arsenic (As) 
15. Cadmium (Cd) 

16. Chromium (Hexavalent) 
17. Lead (Pb) 

18. Total Mercury (Hg) 
19. Cyanide (CN-) 

20. Oil and Grease (Petroleum Ether Extracts) 
21. Organophosphate as Malathion 

22. Phenolic Substances and Phenols 
23. Surfactants (MBAS)

Whereas; 

Environmental Monitoring Plan (EISR, Chapter 8, Table 8.1.1) requires surface water monitoring parameters (both for baseline and construction 
monitoring) as follows:

• Once before construction
• Quarterly

1. BOD 
2. COD 
3. Color 
4. TSS 

5. Oil and grease 
6. Coliform 

7. pH 
8. Temperature 

9. Water table level

Please clarify which procedure will be taken into consideration for the ambient water baseline and quality monitoring process before and 
during the construction.

The Employer confirms what is mentioned in Section 118.8.4 of GS (Addendum) as the 
procedure to follow. However, GS 118.1 also states; “compliance with the following 

environmental laws, rules, regulations and standards”, specifically RA 9275 
Philippine Clean Water Act.

1)Clause 118.8.4.

Section 6 - IB General 
Specification, GS 118 

ENVIROMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT,

2) 2) EISR, Chapter 8 
Environmental Compliance 

Monitoring, Table 8.1.1 
Environment Monitoring Plan for 

the Proposed SCRP

Volume 2 
ALL18



No. Packages Volume Section Page No. Clause No./Title
Reference Text 
(if necessary) 

Clarification
Request

Final Response

CP S01-02 Responses to Bid Requests (Batch 7)

20 ALL Volume 2

1) Section 6 - IB General 
Specification, GS 118 

ENVIROMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT

2) EISR, Chapter 10 10. 
Institutional Plan for the 
Implementation of the 

Environmental Management Plan, 
section 10.3, Table 10.3.1 Types of 

Monitoring Report,

2) Page 10-12. 1) Clause 118.4.1.

Contractor’s Environmental Reporting 

GS 118 (Addendum) states that “The Contractor shall also ensure the onboarding of Pollution Control Officer(s) or third party agent who will 
conduct the environmental baseline monitoring activities, and prepare Self-Monitoring Report (SMR) and Compliance Monitoring Report 

(CMR) to be submitted to the DENR.”

Table 10.3.1 of ESIR (addendum) defines that Contractor is responsible for preparation of “Monthly HSE Compliance Report”. Quarterly Self-
Monitoring Report (SMR) and Semi-annual Compliance monitoring report (CMR) are under responsibility of GC and PMO.

The Contractor will take into account the submission of only “Monthly HSE Compliance Reporting” considering that other reports stated in 
addendum of GS 118 are required to be prepared by GC and PMO staff as per impartiality and monitoring requirements of the 

stakeholders.Still, the CONTRACTOR will cooperate with CLIENT in for provision of data and information for the mentioned reports.

Please clarify and confirm this approach.

The Contractor’s PCO staff will prepare the SMR and CMR to be submitted to DENR 
particularly for activities or facilities covered by ECCs they have acquired under GS 

104 (e.g., batching plant). On the other hand, separate SMR and CMR will be prepared 
by the Client for submission to the DENR. The Contractor’s approach of providing the 

necessary data and information for the Client’s SMR and CMR is confirmed.

21 ALL Volume 2
 Book 1, A_CP S-01 & 02_Bridge 
_ Viaduct, 02_CP S-01_VIA00.pdf

4/16 NSRP-DWG-VIA00-ST-1901 Lighting arrester details There are some minor MEP scope at viaducts such as lightning protection system. Please specify the related pose items in BOQ.

The earthing and lightning arrester pertaining to the viaduct are not covered by the 
civil works scope of work (SOW). The aforesaid items shall be under the E&M Works 

contractor or "By Others". Drawings to be revised to include clarification or note that 
this work is not Contractor's scope and shall be issued as Addendum No.3.

22 ALL Volume 1
1.3 CP S-01 & 02 Volume1A
Section4A BOQ 201001.xlsx

Bill No 6.xx Although station MEP drawings are exist, Substation MEP drawings are not included in tender folders. Please give the same.
All MEP drawings were already submitted, including the stations and sub-stations for 

tender submission.

23 ALL Volume 2 
Section 6 – IC Technical 

Specification
TS 200 – Bridges and Viaducts

TS200 - 65 204.4.12 The Contractor shall install access tubes for CSL testing in all bored piles, except as otherwise noted, to permit access for the CSL test probes.
Specification Item 204.4.12 specify installing access tubes for CSL testing in all bored piles. We would like to confirm if we could just 

follow quantities define in the BOQ?

The contractor must comply to the Technical Specifications and to drawing no. NSRP-
DWG-VIA00-ST-0320 Rev21 concerning the installation of the access tubes for CSL 
testing to All Bored Piles.                                                                                               BOQ 

Item 204(7) pertains to the Cross Hole Sonic Logging Test.

24 S-02 Volume 2 
Section 6

I Specifications
B General Specifications

17 NSRP-DWG-VIA00-ST-1901
Please could you advise the tenderer which item should be used to indicate the cost for Earthing and Lightning Arrester which is shown in 

the mentioned drawing?

The earthing and lightning arrester pertaining to the viaduct are not covered by the 
civil works scope of work (SOW). The aforesaid items shall be under the E&M Works 

contractor or "By Others".

25 S-02 Volume 2 Section 6 IB General Specification GS 38 114.2.6
In cases where it is necessary or required by the Engineer, the Contractor shall construct and maintain temporary traffic ramps, and furnish all 

the labour and materials required.
Which BOQ item includes this payment? Please explain how the specified work will be paid.

Please refer to the Updated BOQ, Addendum 1, Bill No. 1, Item GS114-Traffic 
Management. Please also refer to the provisions in the General Specifications (GS), 

Section GS 114- Traffic Management.

26 S-02 Volume 2 NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0023 Rev 21 Gabion Mattress

The current layout of gabion mattress clashes with existing piers of Pandacan Bridge and reaches beyond the NSRP ROW as shown on 
drawings. Please clarify.

In addition, the specified gabion mattress may pose challenge during construction owing to its unstiffined nature for lifting. Please advise if 
alternative such as concrete mattress could be accepted.

The layout of the gabion mattress should be adjusted to avoid clashing with existing 
piers.

VIA02-ST-0023 will be revised and issued in Addendum 3

27 S-02 Volume 2
Section 6 - TS200 Technical 

Specification
208.9.2 Metal Ducts Minimum Wall thickness shall be as follows: 0.45mm for ducts less than or equal to 66.7mm diamter, 0.6mm for ducts greater than 66.7mm diameter.This is not in accordance with normal PT specifications which would require a maximum 4-4.5mm duct strip thickness. Please confirm or 

clarify.

Duct minimum thickness shall be 0.5mm (ga 26). For ductwork schedule, please refer 
to mechanical drawing typical details as well as he submitted Technical Specifications 

(TS).

28 S-02 Volume 1A
 Part I Section 4A Bidding forms -

Bill of Quantities
Bill 1, GS103 Possesion of Site and Contractor´s 

Mobilization.
 Item Gs103(4): Demobilization of Contractor´s EquipmentItem Gs103(8): Demobilization of Contractor´s Equipment Both items seem to be similar, kindly provide instruction on which item to be followed and to be discarded. Please refer to the Revised BOQ, Bill No. 1 which shall be issued as Addendum 2.

29 S-02 Volume 1A
 Part I Section 4A Bidding forms -

Bill of Quantities
Bill 1, GS103 Possesion of Site and Contractor´s 

Mobilization.
 Item Gs103(5): All sundry and associated items not allowed elsewhere.Item Gs103(9): All sundry and associated items not allowed elsewhere. Both items seem to be similar, kindly provide instruction on which item to be followed and to be discarded. Please refer to the Revised BOQ, Bill No. 1 which shall be issued as Addendum 2.

30 S-02
Volume 2

Book-1 (Civil) 
- Drainage - Mainline Drainage

NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0004;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0007;NSRP-DWG-
VIA02-DR-0019;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0020;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

0021;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0022;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0023;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-0026;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0033;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

0035;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0036;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0039;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-0040;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0041;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

4001;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4010;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4010A;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4010B;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4020;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-

DR-4030;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4040;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4050;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4051;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4060;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

4061;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4062;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4070;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4080;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4081;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

4090;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4100;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4110;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4120;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4121;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

4130;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4140;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4141;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4180;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4181;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

4190;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4191;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4210;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4211;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4212;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-

4213;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4214;NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4220;NSRP-
DWG-VIA02-DR-4221

NSRP DETAILED DESIGN
Package CP S-02: Viaduct 02

At-Grade mainline Drainage Drawings 

GENERAL NOTES (NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0004): 

Item 4.15 Drainage Notes
"All existing drainage affected by PNR to realigned by others."

Item 5.4 Utilities
"On sections where existing canals are affected by the columns and piers, rechannelling shall be carried out, subject to approval of the Engineer."

Item 6.1 Drainage Crossing Connection Construction Sequence
"Construction of the drainage crossings underneath the freight track and the PNR temporary track are by others and is not included in this 

construction package.
Profiles na dplans presented in the 4000 series of drawings are for information only". 

1. Please confirm the scope of works included in the 4000 series of the drawings are not part of the contract of the Package 2. 
2. Kindly clarify and provide details about the planning and construction methologies of the transversal drainage which is interrupting the 

internal site movements.
3. In case that the drainage under the 4000 series is not diverted prior maximum by the month 12 from the commencement of the project, 

please confirm if contractually this drainage can be treated as an utility.   

The relocated canal shown on the drawings shall be constrcuted by the bidder.  The 
proposed canal shown on the drawings shall be constructed by others.  Bidder is 

advised that information about the demarcation between the PNR relocation work and 
the project construction it has been included Addendum 4.

31 S-01
Volume 2

Part II Requirements
Section 6- Employer's 

Requirements
IC-Technical Specification

Blumentritt Station Architectural 
Drawings

TS 500-58 to TS 500-59;

NSRP-DWG-BLU-AR-3403;
NSRP-DWG-BLU-AR-3531;
NSRP-DWG-BLU-AR-3532;
NSRP-DWG-BLU-AR-3533

Ceramic tile Works;

Blumentritt Station Detailed Plan 3 (Staff Room);
Blumentritt Station Detailed Plan Interior (Paid 

Area);
Blumentritt Station Detailed Plan Interior (Unpaid 

Area);

Ceramic Tiles
As we review the drawings, we noticed that the floor and wall finishes of Toilet (staff,public & PWD Toilet) is different from the Technical 

Specifications. See Annex A. Please clarify.
TS-500 General Provision #7 updated;

See drawing NSRP-DWG-BLU-AR-3403, AR-3531, AR-3532, and AR-3533 under Rev. 
21.3 in Addendum 3 

32 S-01 Volume 2 Blumentritt Station Architectural 
Drawings

NSRP-DWG-BLU-AR-3411 Blumentritt Station Wall Section Sheet 1 Please confirm the material used on the highlighted item in the elevation view of the station. See Annex F.
The highlighted item is under the platform and beside the viaduct piers which is a 

VOID area. The flooring and ceiling are RC slab which have no finish.

33 S-01 Volume 2

General Specification
S-01 S-02_20210119 rev 1

Part 2 Section IC TS 700 Electrical 
2020121

Part 2 Section IC TS 600 
Mechanical 2020918

GS 100
GS 128 DEFECTS LIABILITY

128.1 General

The Warranty Period for contractual spare parts, special tools and testing equipment or any other item of equipment delivered shall be thirty six 
(36) months (1,095 calendar days) from the date of delivery and acceptance by the Employer of such spare parts, tools and test equipment or any 

other equipment.

Please confirm if Warranty of "any other item of equipment" means that ALL supplied materials and equipment shall have 36 months 
Warranty or we will refer to specific Warranties of equipment in Technical Specifications. 

The warranty period of each piece of equipment was already identified in the submitted 
Technical Specifications (TS) . The contractor shall submit materials, spare parts list, 

and the preventive maintenance list but subject to approval by Professional 
Mechanical/Electrical Engineer/s (PME/PEEs) on site.

34 S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 CPS-02 BOQ ARCHITECTURAL Please verify the items that have T=50mm Cement Mortar Topping.
The 50 mm thk "mortar topping" is used in the drawing as reference to indicate the 

finish floor line (FFL). For the type of floor finishes, please refer to NSRP-DWG-STA-
AR-3501.

35 S-02 Volume 2 2.2 SCRP General Specification 
201001

GS 90 GS 128 DEFECTS LIABILITY
128.1 General

The Warranty Period for contractual spare parts, special tools and testing equipment or any other item of equipment delivered shall be thirty six (36) months (1,095 calendar days) from the date of delivery and acceptance by the Employer of such spare parts, tools and test equipment or any other equipment.Please provide list of Contractual Spare Parts, Special Tools, and testing equipment as required for Waranty Period of 36 months.

The warranty period of each piece of equipment was already identified in the submitted 
Technical Specifications (TS) . The contractor shall submit materials, spare parts list, 

and the preventive maintenance list but subject to approval by Professional 
Mechanical/Electrical Engineer/s (PME/PEEs) on site.

36 S-02 Volume 2
Part 2 Section

IC TS 700 Electrical 20200918
121  Uniterruptable Power Supply (UPS) The UPS shall be fitted with a manually operated make before break mechanical by-pass system. The batteries shall be fitted with a circuit breaker. Please confirm if the statement implies an external mechanical by-pass system, since UPS has an internal by-pass system.

The UPS shall be fitted with an external manually operated make before break 
mechanical by-pass system."

37 S-01 Volume 1A Section 4A BOQ_Add1_20210125 Bill no.1 GS103(6) Time related Costs of Contractor's General Equipment

Since there is no detail information in General Specification 103 for the item GS103(6);
please could you explain the payment schedule of the item?

How will be the item payment calculated for Internal Payment Certificate?

How many months will be considered for the payment?

(1)The Milestone payment Schedule shall be established by the contractor subject to 
the review and approval of the Engineer. Please refer to the applicable provisions in 

the GS Appendix 8. (2)Payment shall be in accordance with the approved Priced Items. 
(3)The BOQ shall be revised to indicate the No. of Months for the Time Related Cost of 
the Contractor's General Equipment under Bill No. 1. Updated BOQ shall be issued as 

Addendum No.2.

38 S-02

NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0015, 
0017,
0028,
0029,
0033,
0101,
0103,
0104

There are descrepancy of pile length between drawings and pier schedule i.e. P-67, P-68, P-83, P-171, P-180
and descrepancy of pile size. i.e. P-207, P-211, P212, P-213, P-214, P-215

Please clarify the size and length of the bored piles.

Correct pile lengths are the following:
 

 NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0015
 P-67 - L=34.5m
 P-68 - L=33.0m

 
 NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0017

 P-83 - L=12.0m
 

 NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0028
 P-171 - L=21.0m 

 
 NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0028

 P-180 - L=16.0m
 

Revised drawings will be issued in Addendum 3

39 S-02
General Bid Bulletin No.8

Bid Addendum No.1
Volume 2. Section 6. TS 200

Annex-A
SCRP_CP S-04 to 07 TS 200 Annex A 210119 rev 1

In the "Bid Addendum No.1" for the above-mentions project, a file titled "SCRP_CP S-04 to 07 TS 200 Annex A 210119 rev 1" is included. 
Does this file also apply to CP-S01 to 02? Please clarify.

Yes

40 ALL Volume 1 
 Section 3 Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria
EQC 7 1.2.3.1 BIM Co-Ordinator

According to Key Personnel List, the Bidders are required to submit CVs, qualifications, vocational training and certification of BIM Co-
Ordinator. On the other hand, as per Volume 1A, Section 4A BOQ Item GS119(1), "Mobilisation of BIM Manager" will be priced by the 

Bidders. Please confirm that the BOQ item is related to Mobilization of BIM Co-Ordinator.

Bidder is referred to Addendum 2 BOQ

41 Volume 2 
 Section 6 – IC Technical 

Specification 
Annex A- TS 200

11/57 204.1.1.4
Permanent Casing

Measurement for payment for permanent casing shall be the number of unit in “linear meter” of each diameter of required permanent casing 
installed as specified in Section TS 204.

It is indicated as the measurement for payment casing in linear meter as specified in Section TS 204. On the other hand, according to clause 
204.2.2 Bored Pile Installation Plan of General Specification,

"A description of the method and materials that shall be used to fill or eliminate all voids below the top of shaft between the plan shaft 
diameter and excavated shaft diameter, or between the shaft casing and surrounding soil, if permanent casing Is specified."

Since the permanent casing has been speficied in BOQ, we understood it will not be priced by the Bidders.

In BOQ, no pay item for permanent casing but the cost of casing if required shall be 
included in the unit rate of bored pile construction.

42 S-02
Annex A of General Bid 

Bulletin No. 11
All pages Responses to Clarification Requests (Batch 3)

Relative to some responses in GBB11 referring to Addendum No. 2, we would like to request issuance of the said Addendum No.2 which 
was not included in GBB11 nor in any GBB yet

Bidder is referred to GBB14

43 S-02

Volume 3
Part III - Conditions of 

Contract
Section 8 PCC 8 KD 04

KD 04 Provision of Access for CP NS-01 (trackwork and E&M Systems) to Signalling and Telecommunications rooms to enable installation of 
equipment 

Please provide list of rooms requiring access for KD04 including the handover condition and level of finishes required.
Requierd rooms are shown on the drawing. Condition and level of the handover shall 

be clean and free.

44 S-02

Volume 3
Part III - Conditions of 

Contract
Section 8 PCC 9 KD 05

KD 05 Provision of Access to Concourse Paid/Unpaid area and Platform area for CP NS-01 (trackwork and E&M Systems) to commence 
installation of AFC and PSD equipment 

Please provide handover condition and level of finishes required for the concourse paid/unpaid area and platform area upon access of CP NS-
01 (trackwork and E&M Systems)

Condition and level of the handover shall be clean and free.

Effluent Water Quality Monitoring 

Section 118.8.5 of GS (Addendum) explains Effluent Water Quality Monitoring requirements for discharges. Monitoring is required for the 
below listed parameters in following way:

• Upon commission
• Quarterly, March, June, September, December. 

• When instructed by Engineer based on complaints or pollution incidents.

1. pH 
2. Temp, °C 

3. DO, mg/L(min) 
4. Color, TCU 

5. BOD5, mg/L(max) 
6. Fecal Coliform, MPN/100mL 

7. O&G, mg/L 

However, Environmental Monitoring Plan (EISR, Chapter 8, Table 8.1.1) requires effluent water monitoring parameters (both for baseline and 
construction monitoring) as follows:

• Quarterly

1. BOD 
2. COD 
3. Color 
4. TSS 

5. Oil and grease 
6. Fecal/total Coliform 

7. pH 
8. DO

1) Clause 118.8.5.

1) Section 6 - IB General 
Specification, GS 118 

ENVIROMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT,

2) EISR, Chapter 8 Environmental 
Compliance Monitoring, Table 

8.1.1 Environment Monitoring Plan 
for the Proposed SCRP

Volume 2ALL19 Please clarify which procedure will be taken into consideration for the effluent water quality monitoring process during the construction.

The Employer confirms what is mentioned in Section 118.8.4 of GS (Addendum) as the 
procedure to follow. However, GS 118.1 also states; “compliance with the following 

environmental laws, rules, regulations and standards”, specifically DAO 2016-08, 
Water Quality Guidelines and General Effluent Standards of 2016.

Cofferdam is required to construct BR01-1 and design water level should be provided to design cofferdam. "NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0023" 
indicate MWL 1.50 in Pasig river. Please clarify whether MWL 1.50 is design water level. If not, please provide the design water level

MWL and FL on NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-0023 have been updated in Addendum 3. The 
FL is 2.222m above the MWL which is at 1.5m.

45 S-02
NSRP-DWG-VIA02-ST-

0023



No. Packages Volume Section Page No. Clause No./Title
Reference Text 
(if necessary) 

Clarification
Request

Final Response

CP S01-02 Responses to Bid Requests (Batch 7)

46 S-01 Bill of Quantities No. 4-1 Please provide Load schedule of control panel for fire pump(BLU - FP-CP) and jockey pump(BLU - JP-CP).
Refer to the drawing NSRP-DWG-BLU-EL-5501 v21.3 issued in Addendum 3 for the 

load schedule 

47 CP S-01
Volume 1 - 1.3b CP S-01 

Vol.1A 
Section 4A BOQ_Add1_20210125 Bill no.3 206(11)c Precast Cover Precast Concrete Cover to Cable Trough (Type-2) – reinforcement to be included in the unit rate

While the drawing VIA00-ST-0063 shows type 1-2-3 precast cable trough for 10300 Wide and the drawing VIA00-ST-0064 shows type 1 
and 3 for 6300 Wide and lastly the drawing VIA00-ST0065 shows type 1 and 3 for 5100 Wide. Since there is no 10300 Wide Precast 

Segment Type in Section 01, you are kindly requested to change the item name in Bill of Quantity.

The description in BOQ will be revised in Addendum 4. The correct description is 
"Precast Concrete Cover to Cable Trough – reinforcement to be included in the unit 

rate"

48 CP S-01
Volume 1 - 1.3b CP S-01 

Vol.1A 
 Section 4A BOQ_Add1_20210125 Bill no.3 206(11)c Precast Cover Precast Concrete Cover to Cable Trough (Type-2) – reinforcement to be included in the unit rate

Since there is only 5100 Wide and 6300 Wide precast segments in Section 01 and 5100&6300 Wide precast segments include only Type 1 
and Type 3 precast concrete cable channel, please could you advise the tenderer where to add the cost of Type 1 and Type 3 of concrete 

channels?

 The description in BOQ will be revised in Addendum 4. The correct description is 
"Precast Concrete Cover to Cable Trough – reinforcement to be included in the unit 

rate"

49 CP S-02 Site Data PNR documents Site Data PNR documents Please provide us a safe working distance from the center line of live PNR track
Bidder is referred to GS 131

50 CP S-02 Volume 2 Trees
Bill of Quantities - GS 133 Enabling Works

Bill items GS133(1), GS133(2) and GS133(3) quantities are all in LS.
Information from SCRP_EIS_VOLUM_1_2_26-Jun-2020.pdf and 2.4 SCRP_Supplementary Information 201119.pdf do not provide the 

quantities and sizes of trees to be placed against each item. Please clarify.

Bidder is referred to Site data - Tree inventory survey data in Addendum 3

51 CP S-02

GBB 12 Annex A - Response to Clarification 
Batch 4

Item 140, pp. 12
Demolition of relocation and demolition of 

existing PNR bridge in Pasig River

The relocation/demolition of the footings in Pasig River will be executed by PNR. 
Please confirm our understanding of the term "relocation/demolition" to be carried out by PNR shall be understood to include clearing and 

disposal of the demolished debris.
"relocation/demolition" to be carried out by PNR shall be understood to include 

clearing and disposal of the demolished debris.

52 CP S-02

GBB 12 Annex A - Response to Clarification 
Batch 4

Item 57, pp. 7
Soil investigation at pier locations where previous 

boreholes have been conducted

This query was partially responded. We hereby repeat the first paragraph of the original query and seek clarification.

Section 204.2.7.2 states that the location of boreholes will be at the centerline of each pier and abutment of the bridge/viaduct along the 
centerline of the alignment. Please confirm if the investigation will also be required where previous boreholes have been done already at 

pier locations as shown on the drawings.

In accordance with Section 204.2.7.2 the investigation will also be required where 
previous boreholes have been done already at pier locations.

53 CP S-02

GBB 12 Annex A - Response to Clarification 
Batch 4+J67
Item 54, pp. 7

Realignment of canal

Realignment of the canal is among the option of the contractor. The size and length of the alignment are provided in the plan. NSRP-DWG-
VIA02-DR-4230 will be revised and issued in Addendum 3.

The original query pertains to the area hatched with light brown color as shown in NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0039. In the Legend Table shown 
in NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-004, the light brown hatch means "proposed channel realignment."

Contractor will follow what is the design unless it is for temporary works. What is the meaning of the statement "realignment of canal is 
among the option of the contractor" stated in this response?  

Also in this response, it is stated that "the size and length of the alignment are provided in the plan." Please specify the drawing no. as we dont 
see any detail in drawing  NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-0039.

Moreover, the same response says "NSRP-DWG-VIA02-DR-4230 will be revised and issued in Addendum 3." We dont find this drawing in 
the drawing list, kindly please clarify. 

The alignment of the canal relocation is still subject to further coordination and 
approval from relevant stakeholders The statement of realignment of canal is "among 
the option of the contractor" means the Engineer together with the Contractor shall 
jointly determine the final alignment of the canal realignment. The responsibility for 

determination of the final alignment is still within Engineer's and Employer's 
responsibility.

54 CP S-01
Volume 2 / CP S-

01_04_BLU_ME_PL_SN_
FS

NSRP- DWG- BLU- ME-5661
Blumentritt Station - Mechanical Equipment 

Schedule Sheet 1
N/A Please provide the required EER for each Airconditioning Unit. The EER for each airconditioning unit  is 10.3.                                   

This information shall comprise an update to the pertinent TS for issue in Addendum 4. 

55 CP S-01

CP S-01_03_BLU_EL,

CP S-01 Volume 1A 

Section 4A BOQ / Bill No.4

NSRP-DWG-BLU-EL-5706 to 5709,

T/S No.703/ ITEM No.703(8)a to j
T/S No.707/ ITEM No.703(4)i

Blumentritt Station - Toilet Emergency Call 
System Schematic & Layout 

N/A Please provide type and specification of Communication Cable used in Toilet Emergency Call System

For Type of cables refer to NSRP-DWG-BLUE-EL-5001 v21.3 legends..
 Contractor/vendor shall validate all system components based on manufacturer's 

recommendation in compliance with requirements in relevant TS with the approval of 
professional electrical communications engineer

56 CP S-01
 Can we use higher strength concrete for the BCM Bridge construction to speed up the cycle time of pier segment casting (including pier 
table) ? Using 50 MPa @ 28 Days RMC will only allow the stressing of tendons after 11 days in which atleast 40 MPa is achieved, thus,

we are proposing to use 60 MPa RMC Design to allow stressing for as early as 7 days.

Being subject to Engineer's approval, it is Contractor's responsibility to propose 
construction method complying with all the technical requirements in the Drawings 

and Specifications. 

57 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 NSRP-DWG-ESP-ST-4431
In the provided drawings we notice no plan and details for the Cantilever Slab. Kindly provide detailed plan for Cantilever slab for Espana 

Station.
Cantilever details to be provided on sheet NSRP-DWG-ESP-ST-4431 rev 21.3 in 

Addendum 4

58 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 NSRP-DWG-STM-ST-4641
Schedule of reinforcement details for Deck Slab of elevated walkway of Sta. Mesa Station conflicts with the details specified on the 

drawing. Please confirm which will govern. See Annex CM.
Details on sheet NSRP-DWG-STM-ST-4641 to govern. Sheet NSRP-DWG-STM-ST-

4604 to be updated on rev 21.3 in Addendum 3

59 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 NSRP-DWG-STM-ST-4611 Kindly provide comprehensive dimensions and reinforcement details for Coping beam. See Annex CN. Coping Beam dimensions to be provided on NSRP-DWG-STM-ST-4611 rev 21.3 in 
Addendum 3

60 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 NSRP-DWG-SS01-ST-4101                NSRP-DWG-SS01-AR-3101 Which of the following plans will govern regarding the dimensions of Substation 01: See Annex CP. The architectural drawings will govern. Structural drawings have already been 
updated, refer to sheet NSRP-DWG-SS01-ST-4101 rev 21.3 in Addendum 3

61 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 NSRP-DWG-SS00-AR-3021

STEEL HANDRAILS:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
5.1 Which will govern? S506(1)a: MT-2a and 2b Type Handrail: H=850mm, 34mm Dia. x 3.2mm, Hot Dip Galvanized Steel Pipe Posts at 

1200mm C/C and 2 No. of Horizontal Handrails with Fluororesin Paint Finish or 38mm dia Steel Railing based on plan?
5.2 Are the two (2) horizontal handrails with 25mm dia. already covered in Item S506(1)a?

5.3 Which BOQ item covers the quantities of the 50mm dia. handrail? See Annex CT.

Please refer to NSRP-DWG-SS00-AR-3201 Rev 21.3 in Addendum 3 for the standard 
detail and specifications of handrails used in all substations.

62 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 BOQ 6-1, 6-2 Substation Kindly provide details and location of this item. S506(8): Hot Dip Galvanized Steel Grating Floor, 4 l.m. The details and location for this tem: Please refer to drawing NSRP-DWG-SS01-AR-
3022. REV. 21.3 in Addendum 3

63 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 BOQ 6-1, 6-2 Substation Kindly provide details and location of this item. S555(1): Door Sign, 3 ea
The details and location for this item Please refer to drawing NSRP-DWG-SS00-AR-

3101 to 3103. BoQ to update based on updated drawings.REV. 21.3

64 CP S-02 Volume 2 Book 2 BOQ 6-1, 6-2 Substation Kindly provide details and location of this item. S555(2): Building Sign, 2 ea The details and location for this item Please refer to drawing NSRP-DWG-SS00-AR-
3101 to 3103. BoQ to update based on updated drawings. REV. 21.3 in Addendum 3

65 ALL Volume 2
Section 6 – IC Technical 

Specification Annex A- TS 200
TS200 - 127 206.18.4.3

Each formwork traveler shall be erected on site as a trial before being transported and lifted to its location on the pier top. Where instructed by 
the Engineer load and deflection tests shall be carried out.

Regarding formtraveller deflections (elastic deformation of the FT) , shall we allowed to assume form traveller deflection for the first pour 
in our precamber calculations or shall we need to conduct a formtraveller deflection and load test prior to erection of formtraveller? If we 

have to conduct a deflection and load test will you accept the test to be performed on manufacturers factory and witnessed by 3rd party 
instead of performing the test at construction site?

The form traveller shall be allowed to comply form traveller deflection for the first 
pour, the precamber calculations or shall be conducted a formtraveller deflection and 
load test prior to erection of formtraveller with the approval of the engineer on site.

66 ALL Volume 2
Section 6 – IC Technical 

Specification Annex A- TS 200
TS200 - 155 208.11 Tensioning

Regarding post tensioning, do we have to conduct a friction test for each structure separately to verify the assumptions on design stage about 
actual friction and wobble coefficients? Or shall you accept the manufacturers assumptions on friction and wobble coefficients?

Please get approval from the engineer in case you decide to adopt the manufacturers 
assumptions on friction and wobble coefficients.

67 ALL
Volume 2 & A_CP S-
01_Bridge _ Viaduct

7/40 NSRP-DWG-BR203-ST-0031
For BR203, the Bidder kindly request to clarify the position of strand jack whether it should be at the back side of steel box girder as stated 

in the drawings or the Client is open for solutions the strand jack is located at Pier 16.

The erection drawing is a reference drawing, and the detailed method and equipment 
used can be changed with the consideration of the contractor and the approval of the 

engineer.

68 ALL
Volume 2 & A_CP S-
01_Bridge _ Viaduct

7/40 NSRP-DWG-BR203-ST-0031
For BR203, the Bidder kindly request to clarify whether the Client is open for solutions using other equipments with Incremental Launching 

Methodology instead of using strand jack.

The erection drawing is a reference drawing, and the detailed method and equipment 
used can be changed with the consideration of the contractor and the approval of the 

engineer.

69

Since raw material is the same and fabrication process is the same for all bearings so we propose to carry out tests on one bearing of the 
range 500x550x110 (32 lots) and one bearings 650x700x102 (the biggest one) . Please could you confirm?

• Since bearings are used on a bridge in Philippines, Concerning item 3(4) , low temperature shear test and item-4 (6) , low temperature 
shear modulus test,  do we need to perform the tests as described in ASSHTO to verify their mechanical capacity under low temperature?

Normally suppliers will carry out quick production tests on their elastomeric bearing, 
differring types … in accordance with the relevant standard.This data is normally 

available as part of the suppliers service. Acceptance testing (project specific) shall be 
in accordance with the relevant standard and subject to the Engineers instruction in 

the event of non-compliance. These test are compression and shear tests.

• AASHTO LRFD Bridge Construction Specification Sect. 18.3 
is for Pot and Disc Bearings

• Sampling rates as per AASHTO M 251 are the following:
a. Plain bearings = two (2) full size bearings per lot. 

b. Steel-reinforced bearings = one (1) full size bearing per every ten per lot, with a 
minimum of 

two (2).

70 ALL
Volume 2 - SCRP_Vol. 2 

Part 2 
Sec. IC TS 200 Bridges and Viaduct 

200918
246 216.3.4

SAMPLING AND TESTING - Sampling, testing, and acceptance consideration shall be made on a lot basis. A lot shall be the smallest number of 
bearings as determined by the following criteria:

1) Shall not exceed a single contract document or project quantity.
2) Shall not exceed 25 bearings.

Shall consist of those bearings of the same type regardless of load capacity. Bearing types may be fixed or expansion types. Guided and 
nonguided expansion bearings shall be considered to be a single type.

POT BEARINGS:

According to AASHTO, lot is described as following;

18.3.4.1 – Lot Size
Sampling testing and acceptance consideration shall be made on a lot basis. A lot shall be the smallest number of bearings as determined by 

the following criteria:
• Shall not exceed a signle contract document or project quantity.

• Shall not exceed 25 bearings.
• Shall consist of those bearings of the same type regardless of load capacity. Bearing types may be fixed or expansion types. Guided and 

nonguided expansion bearings shall be considered to be a single type

• Will you accept similar tests results performed in other projects for item-2 (material friction test-sliding surfaces only) and for item-3 ( 
fabrication tolerances and testing) instead of performing a new test?

• Since item-4 (long term deterioration test) requires a long time, will you accept not to perform this test?

"Where materials are from the similar source or batch - previous test results to prove 
individual material properties can be used. Test will be needed when a new source of 

different batch from the manufacutures normal supply chain is used, Historical data on 
bearing deterioration maybe used, providing its acceptable and meets the relevant 

standard. 
Please get approval from the engineer in case you decide to use test results from 

similar source or batch."


